M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 24, 2002
9:16 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 75, Side A
SFC 02 # 75, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approximately 9:16 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda G een

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senator Loren Leman

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

Senator Gary W/ ken

Al so Attendi ng: REPRESENTATI VE HUGH FATE; SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT;
REPRESENTATI VE FRED DYSON; PATRICK GALVIN, Director, Division of
Governnental Coordi nation, Ofice of the Governor; JI' M NORDLUND,
Director, Division of Public Assistance, Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services; PAM LABCOLLE, President, Al aska State Chanber of
Commer ce; MARY JANE FATE, Menber, Arctic Research Comm ssion

Attendi ng via Tel econference: From Anchorage: REPRESENTATI VE SCOTT
OGAN, MARK MYERS, Director, Division of G| & Gas, Departnent of
Natural Resources; NMEAD TREADWELL, Menber, Arctic Research
Conmi ssion (ARC) and Director, Institute of the North; From Mat- SU.
DANA OLSON, resident of Mat-Su Coastal District;

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON

HB 439- COASTAL ZONE MANAGEMENT PETI Tl ONS
The Conmittee heard fromthe sponsor, the Division of Governnental

Coordi nati on, and took public testinony. A conmttee substitute and
one anendnment were adopted, and the bill reported from Committee.

SFC- 02 (1) 04/ 24/ 02



SJR 44- STATE- FEDERAL JO NT RESEARCH PLAN

The Committee heard public testinony and reported the bill from
Commi ttee.

HB 307- O L/ GAS EXPLORATI ON | NCENTI VE CREDI T

The Conmmttee heard fromthe sponsor and the Departnent of Natura
Resources, and reported the bill from Commttee.

HB 402- ALASKA TEMPORARY ASSI STANCE PROGRAM

The Conmittee heard testinony fromthe sponsor and the Depart nent
of Health and Social Services. The bill was held in Commttee.

#hb439

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 439(RES)(title am

"An Act renoving provisions providing an opportunity to
petition for review of proposed or final consistency
determ nations under the Al aska coastal zone nmanagenent
program and |limting the authority of the Al aska Coastal
Policy Council to order a coastal resource district or a state
agency to take action with respect to a proposed or final
consi stency determ nation."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE SCOTT OGAN testified via teleconference from
Anchorage to state that this |egislation changes the A aska Coast al
Zone Managenent Program by: elimnating the petition process
currently allowed during consideration of a program s consi stency
determ nation; specifying that approved resource agencies are
limted to the Departnment of Environnental Conservation, the
Department of Natural Resources, and the Departnment of Fish and
Ganme; and establishing, under specified circunstances, a petition
process generated froma coastal resource district by a citizen of
that coastal resource district or by a state resource agency. He
informed the Committee that these changes are supported by the
Al aska G| and Gas Association (ACR); have resulted in a limted
“outcry” fromenvironnental groups; and are not opposed to by the
State Adm nistration.

SFC- 02 (2) 04/ 24/ 02



Senat or Ward asked whether the changes in this bill would affect
the proposed extension of the Tony Know es Coastal Trail in
Anchor age.

Representative QOgan responded that this legislation would not
“hanper a constituent’s ability” to participate in a consistency
determ nation; however, it wuld “elimnate a dysfunctional
petition process” which petitioners have used to delay projects. He
noted that the petition process “was never used successfully by
anybody to halt or change a project,” but it did extend the tine
involved in conpleting a project; thereby, increasing costs.

Senator Ward stated that citizens have expressed concern that
certain government entities support extension of the coastal trail,
and m ght usurp the public process.

Senator Leman asked whether Representative Ogan supports an
i mredi ate effective date for this bill.

Representative Ogan responded he supports an imredi ate effective
date, as the provisions of this bill would affect pending projects.

Co-Chair Kelly asked Representative Ogan to further explain the
petition process identified in Section 7, subsection (h) of the
Version “L” commttee substitute, which, he noted, has not been
adopt ed.

Representati ve Ogan read froma sectional anal ysis nenorandum dat ed
April 23, 2002 from Kathryn Kurtz of the Division of Legal and
Research Services, [copy on file] which states, “This subsection
woul d permt a coastal resource district, a citizen of the coastal
resource district, or a state resource agency to file a petition
showi ng that a district coastal managenent program is not being
i npl enented.” He stressed that a petition process renains; however,
it 1s not based on whether “they were being fairly heard, but
rat her on whet her the program was being inplenented.”

Senator Green noved to adopt the commttee substitute for HB 439,
Version 22-1LS1464\L as a working draft.

There being no objections, Version “L” was ADOPTED as a wor ki ng
draft.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT clarified that Section 7 of this
| egi slation specifies that if any district, citizen of that
district, or permtted resource agency determ nes that the |ocal
plan is not being consistently followed, that party could file a
petition requesting the Al aska Coastal Policy Council to “review
the plan.” He continued that if the Council determ nes that the

SFC- 02 (3) 04/ 24/ 02



plan is not being followed, it would instruct the project “to get
back on track.” He stressed that the Council could not “go back and
review a project or question decisions” that had been nade
regarding that project. He asserted that +this legislation
speci fies, “the Al aska Coastal Policy Council could order a coastal
resource district or state resource agency to take action wth
respect to future inplenentation of the plan.”

Senator Therriault supported an imrediate effective date for the
bill, and urged the Committee to request a legal analysis to
address a situation in which a petition mght already have been
filed or is pending as all owed under current |aw.

Amendnent  #1: This conceptual anendnent would establish an
i mredi ate effective date for the bill and allow for transitional
| anguage to permt petitions that are already in progress be
al l owed to proceed according to current |aw.

Senat or Leman noved for adoption of Amendnent #1.

PATRI CK GALVIN, Director, Division of Governnental Coordi nation
Ofice of the Governor, remarked that the anendnent “would be
adequate.”

Senator Leman asked M. GGlvin whether omtting the existing
petition | anguage fromthe anmendnent woul d create any probl ens.

M. Glvin responded that although there are no petitions currently
on file, there is the possibility that one could be filed. He urged
the Commttee to make the language in the bill “as clear as
possible to avoid any |egal issues;” as historically, when changes
have been nmade to statutes governing the coastal managenent plan
process, legal issues have surfaced. He exanpled that the nost
recent changes to these statutes were made in 1994, and, at that
time, an Al aska Superior Court judge ruled that the changes were
procedural and could be applied retroactively.

Senator Ward asked, if this bill were passed today with an
i mredi ate effective date, whether a “grand-fathered in” petition
woul d have a “second appeal process currently under the |aw that
woul d be affected.”

M. Glvin responded that, “there is no other admnistrative
appeal .”

Senator O son asked if regional Native councils would be adversely
affected by this amendnent.

M. Galvin responded that this anmendnment woul d not affect regiona
Native councils.

SFC- 02 (4) 04/ 24/ 02



There bei ng no objections, Anendnent #1 was ADOPTED.

M. Glvin testified that the D vision of Governnmental Coordination
is responsible for the inplenentation of the Alaska Coastal
Managenent Program He expl ained that the Al aska Coastal Managenent
Program was enacted in response to the federal Coastal Zone
Managenment Act that allowed coastal states to develop their own
coastal managenent plan. He inforned the Commttee that Al aska's
decision to inplenent a "decentralized" Plan structure enphasizing
| ocal governnment control, devel opnent, and inplenentation, resulted
in the creation of a petition process as a nethod to assure the
federal governnent that the State of Al aska would be responsible
for the overall inplenentation of the Plan.

M. Glvin explained that, initially, inplenentation of the State's
Plan was relegated to | ocal governnments; however, |ocal permtting
decisions resulted in "conflicting decisions about the same issue.”
He stated that, shortly after the State’s Plan was devel oped, in
response to this conflict, a single “consistency review process”
was inplenmented at the State level that allowed the State to
oversee project reviews requiring State or federal permts.

M. Galvin continued that a petition process was al so established
to allow the Coastal WMnagenent Council to review projects to
ensure the Plan was being properly inplenmented at the |ocal |evel;
however, he explained, the process expanded beyond determ ning
whet her petitioners coments were being “fairly considered” and
began "questioning individual project decisions.” He stated this
resulted "in | egal and procedural problens.”

M. Glvin stated that 1994 |egislation addressed these petition
process issues by establishing two petition processes: one through
whi ch the Coastal Policy Council could review whether the process
“was fair to the persons commenting,” but not whether the project
was “a good one;” and the other to determ ne whether there is a
"systematic failure to inplenment the |local plan." He stated that
nei ther petition process "has proven beneficial to anybody."

M. @lvin stated that Section 7, subsection (h) in this
| egislation elimnates the problens created by the petition process
wher ei n deci sions regarding a project were questioned, but |eaves
intact the original intent of the petition process, which is to
det erm ne whet her the Coastal Managenent Plan is being followed. He
stressed that the legislation “retains the ability of |[|ocal
governnent” or citizens or resource agencies to ask the Council to
determ ne “whether there is a pattern of non-inplenentation.”

Senator Austerman asked M. @Glvin whether the Division supports
this | egislation.

M. Galvin responded it does.

SFC- 02 (5) 04/ 24/ 02



DANA OLSON, resident of Mat-Su Coastal District, testified via
tel econference fromMat Su that she woul d be affected by passage of
this bill. She nentioned that during recent testinony on another
bill, SB 361 that addresses revanpi ng the Al aska Coastal Managenent
Program it was determned that additional tine is needed to nore
t horoughly assess the Program She opined that if the petition
process allowing for the gathering of facts were renpbved, then
determ nations regardi ng “consistency” would be jeopardi zed. She
stated that the State’s enphasis on local control is detrinental to
the overall health of such things as the State’'s fisheries, and
water and air quality and also disregards the directives of
Al aska’ s constitution.

Ms. O son agreed that “the petition process is broken;” however,
stressed that citizens should be involved in discussions that woul d
change the program She voiced her opposition to this bill and
urged the Commttee to hold the bill wuntil all aspects of the
program have been revi ewed, instead of “piece-nealing” the program
She voi ced concern that copies of the conmttee substitute, Version
“L”, were not available for public review at the State’s
Legislative Information Ofices (LIO.

Senator Ward assured the testifier that the commttee substitute
woul d be distributed to the State’s LI O sites.

PAM LABCOLLE, President, Alaska State Chanber of Comrerce voiced
that the State Chanber of Conmerce supports this bill. She asserted
that the current “petition process only added needl ess costs and
delays to the permtting process,” which is unwelcone in today’s
conpetitive global narket. She stated that the petition process
proposed in this legislation adequately provides for consistency
determ nati ons.

Senat or Leman noted that the | one opposition to this bill stemmed
from concern that the Programi s chal |l enges are not being addressed
inits entirety; however, he voiced the need to repair “what you
can, when you can.”

Senator Leman noved to report the “Senate Conmttee Substitute for
HB 439 from Committee wth individual recomendations and
acconpanyi ng zero fiscal notes, as anended.”

There being no objection, SCS CS HB 439(FIN) was REPORTED from

Committee with a previous zero fiscal note fromthe Ofice of the
Governor, dated February 20, 2002.

#sjraa

SFC- 02 (6) 04/ 24/ 02



CS FOR SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 44(L&C)
Rel ating to preparation of a joint state-federal research and
devel opnment pl an.

This was the first hearing for this resolution in the Senate
Fi nance Conmittee.

Senat or Leman expl ained that this resolution suggests constructive
means for the various State and federal agencies engaged in
research in the State, to coordinate their activities to pronote
the “optima benefit for Al aska.”

MEAD TREADWELL, Menber, Arctic Research Conmm ssion (ARC) and
Director, Institute of the North, testified via tel econference from
Anchorage and informed the Commttee that ARC s objective is to
formul ate goals and objectives, and to bring federal research
agencies together in a coordinated nmanner to work on issues
affecting Alaska. He stated that major projects being devel oped
include a study on changes occurring in the Arctic region, as well

as Bering Sea research and health issues research. He stated that

this resolution exenplifies the need to coordi nate various federal

and State research progranms as well as educating the State
Legi sl ature about the various federal projects and their funding,

in order for the State to get its priorities “meshed” with the
federal system

MARY JANE FATE, Menber, Arctic Research Conm ssion, concurred that
the coordination of research wuld provide “a wonderful
opportunity” to benefit the State’'s people, resources, and econony
as well as other regions and countries.

Co-Chair Kelly asked whether the US Arctic Commri ssion is the sane
entity as the Arctic Research Comm ssion of the United States
(ARCUS) .

Ms. Fate clarified that these two entities work together. She
stated that the US Arctic Conmission is involved in research
“pol i cy- maki ng.”

Co-Chair Kelly rem nded the Conmttee that the University of Al aska
has recently re-instituted the position of Vice President of
Resear ch

Ms. Fate noted that the person hired for the position is a
scienti st and woul d enhance the State’'s research coordi nati on.

Senator Leman noted that a technical correction is required in the

| egi slation on page 1 |line 13; whereby, the reference to the WAM
nmedi cal program should correctly be the WMM nedi cal program

SFC- 02 (7) 04/ 24/ 02



Senat or Lerman noved to report “the commttee substitute for Senate
Joint Resolution #44, Labor and Comrerce, from Committee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and acconpanyi ng zero fiscal note.”

There being no objections, CS SIR 44 (L&) was REPORTED from
Commttee with a previous zero fiscal note, dated April 16, 2002
prepared by the Senate Labor and Comrerce Committee.

#hb307

HOUSE BI LL NO. 307

"An Act delaying to June 30, 2007, the last date by which
hydr ocar bon expl orati on geophysi cal work nust be perfornmed or
drilling of a stratigraphic test well or exploratory well nust
be completed in order for a person to qualify for an
exploration incentive credit.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGH FATE, the bill’s sponsor, explained to the
Committee that this bill would facilitate further natural gas and
oil exploration in Al aska by extending the exploration incentive
credit for petroleum exploration activities an additional three
years. He noted that any seismc research obtained by private
i ndustry exploration processes under this agreenent would not be
proprietary and copies of the findings would be available to the
State. He stated that this stratigraphic information is benefi ci al
to the State and is an incentive for offering |ease-sales. He
shared the history of drilling and exploration in the Tanana area.

MARK MYERS, Director, Division of Ol & Gas, Departnent of Natural

Resources, testified via tel econference from Anchorage and shared
with the Conmmttee information about the State’'s Exploration
Incentive Credit (EIC) program He conmunicated that this program
was created in 1994 to allowthe State to acquire nore geophysica

data information that it could not obtain under nornal

circunstances on un-leased or private land. He stated that the
program provides for exploration incentive credits that could be
applied toward royalties and taxes. He told of a total program cap
of $30 million, and an individual project cap of $5 mllion. He
detailed how the credits mght be issued and stressed that the data
supplied by the research is beneficial. He noted that sone data
woul d be confidential for a limted anmount of tinme and then becone
available to the State and other entities.

SFC- 02 (8) 04/ 24/ 02



M. Mers stated that the EI C program has not been extensively used
by industry because the information garnered from the research
could be “shown to a third party.” He furthered that the State has
at tinmes, denied an EIC, as sufficient geophysical or geol ogi cal
i nformati on was al ready avail abl e on the area.

Senat or Austernman asked the benefit of this program if no
corporate tax credits have been applied since 1994.

SFC 02 # 75, Side B 10:03 AM

M. Mers stated that the program®is applicable to frontier basins
where there is very little or Iimted geol ogical information.” He
stated that drilling activity has declined since this |egislation
was first enacted, as there is “a fundanmental shift” occurring with
the increased economc interest in gas, particularly with the
prospect of a natural gas pipeline. He stated that this program
could be used in the future, to gather baseline data frommnultiple
basi ns.

M. Mers, responding to a question posed by Senator Ward, stated
that the intent of the program focuses on the value of obtaining
data, not so much as being a stimulus for exploration. He
concurred; however, that a “positive benefit” would be derived by
the State contributing a credit toward the cost of devel oping a
well, provided that the criteria for the exploration neets the
needs of the State.

Representative Fate stated that several exploration projects are
bei ng di scussed for areas of rural Alaska, and if the EIC program
could provide the incentive for these projects to occur, there
woul d be an economc stinulation in those areas. He stressed that,
“there are multiple advantages of this type of incentive.”

Senat or Aust erman voi ced concern about the State’s fiscal gap and
budget, and noted that the State derives tax revenue fromits
natural resources, and this EIP credit woul d reduce those noni es.

Senator Green noved to report “House Bill 307 out of Committee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.”

There being no objections, House Bill 307 was REPORTED from
Conmttee with a previous zero fiscal note, dated January 30, 2002,
from the Departnent of Revenue and a previous zero fiscal note,
dated January 30, 2002 fromthe Departnment of Natural Resources.

SFC- 02 (9) 04/ 24/ 02



#hb402

SENATE CS FOR CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 402( HES)

"An Act relating to diversion paynents, wage subsidies, cash
assi stance, and self- sufficiency services provided under the
Al aska tenporary assistance program relating to the food
stanp program relating to child support cases that include
persons who receive cash assistance or self-sufficiency
services under the Al aska tenporary assistance progran and
providing for an effective date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE FRED DYSON, the bill’s sponsor, inforned the
Commttee that the previous year, an outside audit [copy not on
file] had conducted on the State’s public assistance plan, and that
the recomendati ons of that audit “are encapsulated in this bill.”
He stated that this bill represents the “next step in welfare
programs,” by placing “in statute and practice the whol e concept of
work first.” He conmmunicated that the enphasis of this programis
to take a conbination of “public assistance nonies, food stanp
nonies and other available funding to subsidize enploynent for
wel fare applicants.” He stated, “it is a paradigmshift” for when a
person applies for welfare benefits, instead of being placed on
wel fare and receiving a welfare check, they are first directed
toward becom ng enpl oyed and receiving a paycheck. He stated that
this approach to the welfare system has been successful in the
State of Oegon where the people in the program have had
significant success in retaining their jobs, and the private sector
is delighted to “get workers to fill jobs that were marginally
econom cal before.” He noted this proposed programis supported by
the Admnistration and the Departnent of Health and Social
Ser vi ces.

Representati ve Dyson qualified that two conponents of this bill are
not endorsed by the Admnistration: the first being the nore
stringent sanctions placed on individuals who do not conply with
the directives to obtain enploynent; and the second being a program
participant |imt of 25 percent of the total nunber of eligible
welfare recipients. He stated that the Adm nistration favors no
restriction on the nunber of participants in the program at any
given tinme. He infornmed that the 25 percent cap is based on both
Al aska’s enploynent studies as well as the Oegon programs

SFC- 02 (10) 04/ 24/ 02



experience. He wurged the Commttee to support the bill as
pr esent ed.

Senat or Leman conmended Representative Dyson, Senator Geen and the
Department for their constructive work on this bill. He endorsed
the legislation and stated that the Senate Health Education and
Social Services commttee substitute is an acceptable conpron se
for it instills incentives for the Departnment of Health and Soci a
Services to revise the welfare program as the Legi sl ature intends,
in a “conpassi onate” manner.

Co-Chair Donley stated that his inclination is to trust
Representative Dyson and Senator G een’s judgnent. He asked why
national studies inply that Al aska has exerted mninmal efforts in
addressing welfare reform

Representative Dyson responded that statistics indicate “a
remar kabl e reduction” of the nunber of individuals on welfare in
the State. He stated “there needs to be a cultural shift,” to find
jobs, help create jobs and to enpl oy the peopl e needi ng these jobs,
whi ch involves hiring admnistrative people with a “passion and
vision,” in addition to adopting enabling State statutes. He stated
it is the Legislature’s duty to enact legislation to support the
process, and “it is the Admnistration’s job to find the people who
really have a passion” to nmake the changes happen.

Senator Geen noted that as part of the federal welfare reform
| egi sl ati on, Congress granted “American Indian waiver” status to
the State of Al aska that allows Native people who are residing in
rural areas or other areas of the State where “econom c non-
viability” limts enploynent opportunities, to be exenpt fromthe
five-year (60-nmonth) limtation on welfare benefits. She stated
t hat because the “substantial nunber of people” granted waivers are
not included in the total nunber of participants in which the 25
percent limtation is calculated, she supports the proposed 25
percent cap. She informed the Committee that the limtation on
participation in the federal work-first programis 20 percent and
that the State of Oregon, which has a higher nunber of exenpted
i ndi vidual s than Al aska, has a 30 percent cap.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked whether there is a limt on how | ong people
could receive welfare benefits.

Representati ve Dyson responded that there is a limt of 60-nonths;
however, unlimted waivers are granted to “severely handi capped”
i ndividuals or those who serve as caretakers to a handi capped
chi |l d.

SFC- 02 (11) 04/ 24/ 02



Representati ve Dyson voiced concern that the Departnent woul d grant
wai vers to individuals “just because there is no job in their
area.” He asserted that people should live in areas where job
opportunities exist, and he exanpled that Al aska's indigenous
peopl e historically followed caribou herds; in other words they,
“noved to where the resource was.”

Representative Dyson stated that the Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services has assured himthat waivers would not be granted
to people “just because” they live in an area with limted job
opportunities. He expressed that the proposed program woul d provide
training and other life skills with the expectation that people
woul d rel ocat e.

Senator Green expressed that this |legislation would provide the
Departnment “with a great tool” to encourage sone wel fare benefit
reci pients “who have been reluctant or have refused” to participate
in job training prograns or go for interviews, to reenter the work
force. She stated the current systemis inefficient and “doesn’t
serve either the Departnent or the client well at all” as there is
no i ncentive for people to seek enpl oynent; wherein, the proposed
| egi sl ati on woul d deny benefits to individuals if they refuse to
participate in the training and enpl oynent program

JI M NORDLUND, Director, Division of Public Assistance, Departnent
of Health and Social Services, stated that Representative Dyson and
Senator G een have presented the bill in an accurate manner.

Senator G een asked the testifier whether the Departnent would
of fer any recomrendations to the Governor regarding signing this
bill into | aw

M. Nordlund commented that the final version of bill would be a
factor in any recommendation. He stated that the Departnent
supports no limtation on the nunber of participants in the program
because State | aw specifies criteria as to who would or woul d not
be eligible. However, he noted that the proposed 25 percent cap is
an inprovenent over the current 20 percent limt. He stated that
the Departnent’s concerns about denial of benefits to people who do
not participate in the programhave been addressed in the conmttee
substitute.

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Commttee.
#

ADJ CQURNIVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 10: 30 AM

SFC- 02 (12) 04/ 24/ 02



